SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 11, 2013
1:47 p.m

1: 47:54 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:47 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Christine Marasigan, Staff, Senator Kevin Myer; Joe

Bal ash, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of Nat ur al
Resources; Lisa Wisslar, Self, Juneau; Janes Sullivan,
Sout heast Al aska Conservati on Counci |, Juneau; Deena

Parano, Superintendent, Mat-Su School District, Mat-Su;
Carl Rose, Executive Director, Alaska Association of Al aska
School Boards; Doug Swanson, Business Mnager, Al askan
Publ i c Enpl oyees Associ ati on; Representati ve Shel | ey
Hughes; David Scott, Staff, Senator Donny O son; Ben Brown,
Comm ssi oner, Conmercial Fisheries Entry Comr ssion.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Rosemary Autuangaruak, Self, Barrow, Ken Forrest, Mat-Su
School District, Mt-Su; Steve Atwater, Superintendent,
Kenali Peni nsula  School District; Dr. Rob  Thomason,
Superi nt endent Pet ersburg School District, Petersburg;
Bruce Johnson, Executive Director, Al aska Council of School
Adm ni strators, Juneau; Rhonda Kitter, Chief Financial



Oficer, NEA Alaska Health Plan, Anchorage; Jason Hoke,
Executive Director, Copper Valley Devel opnent Association,
G ennal | en; Barbara Johnson, Executive Director, North Star
Borough Mayor's O fice, Fairbanks; Andy Varner, Executive
Director, Southwest Al aska Minicipal Conference, Anchorage;
Mel ody Ni beck, Bristol Bay Native Association, Dillingham

SUMVARY
SB 90 SCHOCOL DI STRI CT EMPLOYEE HEALTH | NSURANCE

SB 90 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

CS HB 71(FIN)
AK REG ONAL ECONOM C ASSI STANCE PROGRAM

SCS CS HB 71(FIN) was REPORTED out of comittee
with a "do pass" recomendation and with two new
zero fiscal notes from Departnent of Fish and
Ganme, and a previously published fiscal inpact
note: FN2 (CED).

CS HB 129(FI N)
O L & GAS EXPLORATI ON DEVELOPMVENT AREAS

CS HB 129(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in committee
for further consideration.

#HB 129
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 129(FIN)

"An Act relating to approval for oil and gas or gas
only exploration and developnent in a geographical
area; and providing for an effective date.™

1:48: 32 PM
AT EASE

1:48: 51 PM
RECONVENED

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, expl ai ned
HB 129. She stated that the conmttee had previously heard
SB 59, and Section O of that bill was included in HB 129.
She explained that the bill had the sanme material as SB 59,
with the addition of Section 1 of HB 129.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



JOE BALASH, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL

RESOURCES, announced that HB 129 wll consolidate the
Depart ment of Nat ur al Resour ces’ expl oration and
devel opnent approval s, whi |l e still protecting t he

environment and providing for public participation. The
right to explore and develop oil and gas is granted through
a lease that has been through an extensive public disposa
process. A lease is subject to mtigation neasures,
mul ti ple agency permts, and plans of operations approval

Expl oration and devel opnent approvals are nmade in
conjunction with individual plans of operations for a |ease
or project and include a separate public notice for each

approval. Many approvals are repetitive, subject to the
same nitigation neasures, and within the sane geographica
area. He explained that HB 129 will allow the department to
conprehensively evaluate oil and gas exploration and

devel opnent in a geographical area, without regard to |ease
boundaries, and define the <criteria by which specific
proj ects are eval uat ed and appr oved. The initial
conprehensive review of a geographical area gives the
public, governnent agencies and industry an opportunity to
participate and identify exploration and devel opnent
considerations for all subsequent projects. Projects may
then nove forward within the defined paraneters and subject
to the lease nmitigation neasures wthout additional public
review following the geographical area approval process,
saving tinme and resources for both the state and |essee
when approvi ng subsequent plans of operations.

Approvals covering a broader area would both create
efficiencies in the exploration and developnent review
process and provide for the departnment to look at the
overall effects of exploration and developnent across
multiple leases. This bill wll still protect the public
interest by requiring public notice and an opportunity to
commrent under AS 38.05.945. Further, it provides certainty
to the oil and gas industry that exploration and
devel opnent projects may proceed within defined paraneters.

1:53: 43 PM

ROSEMARY AUTUANGARUAK, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference),
testified against HB 129. She felt that the I|egislation
would restrict her ability to participate in the
communi cation regarding decisions related to oil and gas
access. She stressed that activity in the Arctic was very
expensive, so it took effort to communicate w th various

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



layers in the process to effectively place the concerns.
She remar ked t hat i f effective parti ci pation was
restricted, the daily lives of nenbers of the surrounding
comunities would be negatively inpacted. She remarked that
traditional cultural activities were often occurring at the
sane tinme as oil and gas exploration activities. She
stressed the inportance of conmmunity invol venent.

1: 58: 52 PM

LI SA WEI SSLAR, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke against HB 129. She
| ooked at the findings section of the bill. She remarked
that the section was added on the previous Sunday, wth
l[imted testinony and no public coment. She remarked that
the section was added as a result to the court case that
subm tted a decision on March 29, 2013. She expl ained that
the Suprene Court issued a decision that examned the
constitutional principle that the state's natural resources
were to be nade available for maxi num use consistent the
public interest. She remarked that prior court decisions
stated that DNR was required to exam ne new information
that becane available for a project. She felt that DNR
still had a responsibility to analyze, and consider the
curmul ative inpacts through every phase of an oil and gas
project; and provide tinely and neani ngful public notice of
DNR s cunul ative inpact analysis. She continued to discuss
a possi ble anendnent to the bill.

Co-Chair Meyer shared that M. Shine would address the
| egi sl ative findings.

Senator Hoffnman asked to receive the anmendnent that M.
Wei ssl ar di scussed.

2:04:53 PM

JAVES SULLI VAN, SOUTHEAST ALASKA CONSERVATION COUNCI L,
JUNEAU, testified against HB 129. He remarked that he had
already testified against the senate version of the bill

He felt that the problens were apparent in the geographic
areas. He pointed out that the areas were not defined in
statute, and were very nebul ous. He remarked that there had
been testinony regarding the size of the areas, which gave
the inpression that the areas could be as small as a unit.
He stressed that there was no specific definition as to the
size of the area in the bill, and felt that the allowance

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



gave undue pressure on the public, because they would be
unabl e to provide the needed accurate testinony.

Senat or Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Co-Chair Meyer asked for nore information regarding the
findi ngs section.

M. Balash shared that the findings and intent section was
put together by DNR and Departnent of Law (DCOL) in
consultation with the Attorney General. He felt that DNR
had no reason to question the additions, and shared that
DNR was happy with the | anguage in that section. He pointed
out that the Suprenme Court decision used the verbiage in
two places, and remarked that there may be focus on two
separate instances within that deci sion.

2:10:18 PM

Co-Chair Meyer shared that there were various testifiers
avail able for nore i nformati on.

Senator Bishop wondered if the bill wuld slow down
devel opnment on the North Slope. M. Balash replied that he
did not believe that the bill would slow down devel opnment

on the North Sl ope.

Vice-Chair Fairclough did not know of the Suprenme Court
ruling, and it had been inplied that the Attorney Genera

had turned the case around. She felt that there should be
an examnation of cunulative inpact, and sharing that
impact with the public. She asked for nore information
regarding that proposal. M. Balash replied that when DNR
considers offering state land for |ease, a best interest
finding is initially required. The best interest finding
was required for a disposal of interest for any property
that DNR nanages. He furthered that the best interest
finding was conducted for each sale area, every ten years.

He stated that it was a conprehensive docunent that
requires a substantial anount of public notice, public
heari ng, and decision naking. Once the docunent is
conpleted, the finding is used for the next ten years. For
each of the next ten years, there is an annual call for new
information to see if there are any additional studies or
devel opnents that may change the eval uation

2:15:15 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



AT EASE

2:16: 50 PM
RECONVENED

Vice-Chair Fairclough |ooked at page 10 of the Suprene
Court decision, and wondered if it references the public
notice process. M. Balash responded that DNR relied on
that statute to serve the best interest of Al askans.

Senator Hoffman queried the differences between the
statutes. M. Balash responded that the referenced statute
were the factors to consider. He remarked that the nethods
were outlined in a separate statute.

Senator Hoffman wondered if there would concern if the
cunul ative inpact analysis were included. He felt that
there was a concern regarding public participation in the
process.

Vice-Chair Fairclough referenced the Alaska Statutes, and
stressed that there was required notice for the outlining
comunities regarding | and use.

CS HB 129(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:22: 24 PM
AT EASE

2:24: 35 PM
RECONVENED

#sb90
SENATE BI LL NO 90

"An Act relating to group insurance coverage and self-
i nsurance coverage for school district enployees; and
providing for an effective date."

2:25:30 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy explained SB 90, and state that the cost
of health care insurance for all enployees has escal ated
far greater than the rate of inflation and Alaska s 53
school districts have felt the financial pinch. Under
Senate Bill 90, al | Al aska public school districts

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



enpl oyees will be covered by a state-managed group health
i nsurance program Approximately 19,000 school district
enpl oyees and their famlies, an estimated total of 47,000
i ndividuals, wuld be added to the State of Al aska's
Enpl oyee Health Plan. This |arger insurance pool places the
State of Alaska in a position to negotiate a nore favorable
enpl oyee health care insurance plan. By noving school
districts into an integrated state plan, the state and
school districts benefit from the economes of scale.
Currently each school district nust obtain its own
i nsurance coverage; consequently, the |level of coverage and
the cost of premuns vary w dely throughout the state. In
addition to the potential savings with [|ower insurance
prem uns, two ot her advantages are afforded school
districts and the state through this |egislation. Senate
Bill 90 wll provide standardized health care coverage
statewide for all school district enployees. A person who
may elect to nove between school districts will know the
basic insurance coverage offered before the transfer.
Secondly, the need for admnistrative time and effort by
each school district to secure and negotiate a health
insurance plan for its enployees is elimnated. This
responsibility shifts to the Department of Administration
(DOA), a departnent that routinely nanages insurance
policies for all state enployees, and allows school
districts to focus on educational policy issues. Starting
July 1, 2014, school districts will transition to the new
state health care insurance plan as each school district’s
exi sting enployee contracts expire. Al school districts
are expected to changeover to the State of Al aska plan
within three to five years.

2:27: 04 PM

DEENA PARAMO, SUPERI NTENDENT, MAT-SU SCHOOL DI STRI CT, MAT-
SU, testified in favor of SB 90. She shared that her school
district <currently spends approxinmately $30 mllion on
health insurance benefits each vyear in its general
operating fund, which was roughly 15 percent of all
expenditures. Wth the average cost of health care
i ncreasing by approximately 12 percent annual, the Mat-Su
Borough School District could potentially experience a $3.6
mllion increase, which is the equivalent of 36 teaching
positions. In an effort to preserve teaching positions and
control escal ating costs, the Mat-Su Borough School
District fully supports the concept of a statew de
i nsurance pl an.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if an enployee was covered
by another insurance conpany, the district's contracts
required themto pay into the trust, regardl ess of whether
the enployee draws that noney or not. M. Parano replied
that it was not true for the Mit-Su school district, but
may be the case in the Anchorage School District.

Senat or Dunl eavy shared that there was a testifier online
who nay be able to answer sone questions.

Senat or Hof fman queried the circunstances for other Al askan
school districts to oppose the Ilegislation. M. Parano
replied that the opposition may be based on the costs that
they were currently incurring, but felt that, over tine,
all the school districts would be in the same situation.

2:34:26 PM

Senator Hoffman remarked that it was difficult to hire
teachers in the rural areas of the state, and felt that
teachers nmay be lured away by a premum health care
package. Ms. Paranp responded that the cost in each schoo

district would still have an availability to provide the
addi tional coverage. She felt that there could be a prem um
plan in the statewide plan, and the <cost would be
determ ned by the individual school districts.

KEN  FORREST, MAT-SU  SCHOOL DI STRI CT, MAT-SU  (via
tel econference), explained that there was approxi mtely two
years' worth of work to determine the appropriateness of
the affordability of sustainable health care plans for the
Mat - Su Borough School District enployees. He stated a bid
was conducted the vyear prior for non-NEA health trust
coverage for classified enployees, and it was a very
conpetitive bid. He felt that it was inportant to exam ne
alternatives, because the enployer was responsible for
ensuring conpliance with the mninmal coverage requirenents
and the part tine enployee requirenents. He pointed out
that when a large group of enployees were added to any
health care plan, the overall cost would be | owered.

Senator O son wondered if there were any school districts
whose health care coverage costs would increase under the
legislation. M. Forrest replied that there may be sone
school districts that were paying |less, but those costs may
be equalized as the 2014 requirenents were adopt ed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



Senator O son felt that the bill would require the snmaller
school districts to pay nore for their health insurance,
because they did not have the econony of scale of Anchorage
or Mat-Su. M. Forrest responded that there would be an
opportunity for the larger groups to spread the costs
equi tably across the state.

2:39: 55 PM

STEVE ATWATER, SUPERI NTENDENT, KENAI PENI NSULA  SCHOOL
DI STRICT (KPBSD) (via teleconference), spoke in support of
SB 90. He stated that during FY 12 KPBSD spent $21, 247,476
on enployee health <care costs. This conpares to Si
3,053,373 spent for enployee health care costs in FY 08.
The cost per enployee was $11,813 in 2008 and it was
$17,204 in 2012. This increase cane despite cost savings
efforts within the district, and illustrates the need to
reduce health care costs in the district. He stressed that
the larger pool of participants woul d experience a greater
cost savings, because of +the economes and scale and
| everaged purchasing afforded by the increased volune. Such
savings would allow the district to continue to focus their
efforts and resources directly on the instruction of the
students, instead of choosing which services or prograns
woul d be reduced.

DR. ROB  THOVASON, SUPERI NTENDENT, PETERSBURG  SCHOOL
DI STRICT, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 90. He remarked that health insurance was a
very conplex topic, but felt that econom es of scale and an
i ncreased pool of participants made statistical and
econom c sense at a time of declining financial resources.
He remarked that the enpl oyees, students, and prograns were
stressed due to increased health care costs.

2:49: 09 PM

CARL ROSE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA ASSOCI ATI ON OF ALASKA
SCHOOL BOARDS (AASB), testified in support of SB 90. He
remarked that AASB had recently aligned thenselves wth
Resolution 4.8, which was a resolution related to health
care costs and nedical insurance. He stated that the effect
of the Affordable Care Act was not fully understood, so
AASB cal | ed upon the governor, |egislature, and congress to
elimnate the wunintended consequences harnful to school
districts. He felt that there were many school district

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



enpl oyees who were currently content, but pointed out that
there could be negative effects of the Affordable Care Act.
He remarked that that the anticipated negative effect would
require health insurance paynents to go toward people who
did not currently hold health insurance.

Senator O son noted that M. Rose had a statew de
perspective and wondered the nunber of school district
enpl oyees that would be covered would change. M. Rose
replied that he felt that he was only addressing the
current enpl oyee nunber, and AASB was basing their
proj ections on those nunbers.

Senator O son queried if school districts would nore if
they had a smaller nunber of enployees. M. Rose responded
that AASB attenpted to address the economes of scale
through the foundation fornmula and area cost differential
in terns of real dollars. He furthered that the pool was
intended to level the nmarketplace between the l|arge and
smal | school districts.

Senator O son queried a level-out date for health care cost
equity state-wide. M. Rose replied that he could not
project that far out, and that his nenbership felt there
woul d be an increase imedi ately, but not in the |long-term

Senator A son noted that there were many school district
with [IHS beneficent enployees. He wondered if those
enpl oyees would be affected. M. Rose deferred to experts
in the area and related that he was referring in general to
the school districts. He stressed that AASB saw a genera
cost savings, but understood that the cost would vary by
district.

Senator O son wondered if AASB would be in favor of a non-
mandatory health insurance plan. M. Rose responded that
one of the aspects of the legislation was nandatory health
care and medi cal insurance coverage.

2:59:26 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough remarked that the state covered the
cost of health care for many of the small school district
through the base student all ocation (BSA) and the
distribution of funds. She stressed that the state was
paying up to 70 percent for sonme districts' health care
cost increases.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



BRUCE JOHNSON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COUNCI L OF SCHOOL
ADM NI STRATORS (ACSA) , JUNEAU (via t el econf erence),
testified in support of SB 90. He stressed that the cost of
health insurance was a mgjor factor in every schoo

district's budget. He pointed out that the total cost of
health insurance across the 53 school districts totaled
nearly $300 million with anticipated ongoing increases due
to the Affordable Care Act and continued increased costs
for health services. He explained that the total cost
i ncluded school districts and enployee contributions to
heal th insurance. He recogni zed the value of and supported
a health work force, and he stressed that he did not want
to mnimze the inportance of quality health insurance
coverage and the pronotion of wellness. He stressed that
health insurance costs would continue to strain school
district budgets and would limt the funds that could be
directed toward t he cl assroom

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the groups that ACSA represented.
M. Johnson responded t hat ACSA repr esent ed t he
superintendents, elenmentary school ©principals, secondary
school principals, and school business officials.

3:05:19 PM

RHONDA KI TTER, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER, NEA ALASKA HEALTH
PLAN, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified against SB
90. She referred to a letter of opposition (copy on file).

The NEA- Al aska Health Plan (Trust) was fornmed in 1996
as a self-insured health trust for the benefit of
public education enployees. W serve over 5,800
menbers and including their dependents provide direct
services to over 17,000 individuals. The Trust has
wor ked collaboratively wth both school districts,
enpl oyers and bargaining associations to create
benefit options that neet the needs of those nenbers.

Through the Trust we are able to provide:
- Eight different medical plan designs

- Two different dental plan designs

- Vision and prescription benefits

- Menber (enpl oyee) assistance prograns

- Orthodontia coverage

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



Each association/school district has the option of
selecting any of the plan design offerings and the
associ at ed deducti bl e/ out - of - pocket conbi nation. Oten
the choice is nade according to the benefit |evel
al t hough many choose to select a plan based upon its
prem um |Individual school districts have different
approaches in attracting and retaining quality
enpl oyees to their area. The Trust affords them this
opportunity in selecting the plan design that fits
t heir needs.

For the past 15 years the Trust has averaged a |ess
than 10 percent increase annually in premunms. As a
non-profit entity, all nonies collected by the Trust
must be only wutilized for the health and welfare
benefits of the nenbers. In addition to our |ower than
average annual health plan cost increases, the Trusts
adm nistrative costs are only 3 percent, national
benchmarks are 6 percent wth several fully insured
products averaging closer to 20 percent. To state it
anot her  way, 97 <cents of every premum dollar
collected goes towards paying for the health care

received by the nmenbers of the Trust. | would
chall enge any carrier to match that |ow adm nistrative
f ee.

Last year the Trust had a zero percent rate increase
in its premum This was a substantial savings for
many of Al aska’'s school districts who were faced with
the public news of high double digit increases
expected due to ACA

W work closely with the school districts in helping
their enployees wunderstand their Dbenefits and our
office in Anchorage is a point of contact for nenbers
experiencing difficulties W th cl ai s and
understanding their benefits. The |evel of custoner
service provided to both the nenbers and their
enployers is inportant to the Trust. W are able to
renove grievance issues from the enployers as well as
the adm nistrative burden of keeping up with health
care reform

As one of the largest self-insured trusts in Al aska we
are able to negotiate very favorable contracts wth
providers in Alaska as well as our contracts wth
speci al i sts outside of Al aska.

In addition over the |ast year the Trust has:

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



- Audited our pharmacy vendor to assure they are in
conpl i ance performance standards

- Dd a conplete assessnent of our disease managenent
programto neasure its effectiveness

- ldentified a need for a new vendor to address
behavi oral health issues

- Are addressing the cost of air anbul ance services

- Piloted a surgical travel benefit

- Are piloting a bio-netric screening program to
better nmanage the population's health

- Are aggressively applying data analytics in order to
understand what nenber health issues we should be
focused on

- Are responding to the changi ng needs of the nenbers
as healthcare evolves in Al aska

- Seeking to pilot preferred relationships wth
medi cal providers that neasure cost and quality

The Trust is always assessing its costs and service to
its nmenbers and as a result nodifies the plans on an
annual basis. In this environment any health plan that
is restrained so that it can only address its costs
every three years at the bargaining table or through a
| engthy procurenent process cannot be efficient,
effective and affordabl e.

A nunber of consultants have expressed concern that a
State CGovernnent take-over of insurance industry,
third party adm nistration service seenms a little at
odds with policy prescriptions in favor of private
sector free enterprise

The comments from the sponsor suggest that the State
woul d negotiate with carriers. This inplies that the
State mght enter into a fully-insured contract on
behal f of the school districts. This would do nothing
but add costs to the prograns as new PPACA taxes are
going to nuch nore aggressive for fully-insured plans
t han sel f-funded prograns.

If the State intends to self-fund this plan then it
woul d becone the sponsor. The State already sponsors a
plan for its enployees and retired nenbers. There is
nothing to suggest that the State has done a nore
effective job at maintaining costs and securing
preferred contracts that would be better than what
nost school districts al ready enjoy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



The State, should it becone a sponsor, would have to
allow vendors to conpete through a restrictive and
anti quated procurenent process. Healthcare is changing
and buying care or nore inportantly buying services is
not the sane as buying pencils. The NEA Health Plan is
ninmble and can respond to the changing needs of the
heal t hcare concerns of our nenbers wthout being tied
to the bureaucratic processes that the State nust
conply with. The current TPA bid that the State is
involved with has already gone on four nonths | onger
t han anti ci pat ed.

W oppose SB 90 and HB 196, the mandate to purchase
health insurance through the State of Alaska. The
Trust provides school districts with cost effective
pl an designs, provides |low admnistrative services
leaving nore premum for benefits, provides |ocal
know edgeabl e custoner service, provides aggressive
contract negoti ati ons and has denonstr at ed
successfully since 1996 that we are able to work with
our nmenbers to control costs and inprove their health.

Nothing in the SB 90 or HB 196 denonstrates the
ability for the State to have a positive inpact on
controlling healthcare spending, inprove on neasurable
health of participants, or increase custoner service

qual ity.
Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if NEA was against the bill or
the speed at which the bill was progressing. M. Kitter

responded that NEA was agai nst the speed at which the bil
was progressing, because she felt that there had not been
sufficient notification to the enployees or sufficient
research on the inpact of the |egislation.

Co- Chair Meyer handed the gavel to Co-Chair Kelly.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that NEA was not against the
bill, but the speed at which the bill was exam ned. M.
Kitter agreed.

Co-Chair Kelly handed the gavel to Vice-Chair Fairclough

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough remarked that the state was currently
experiencing a revenue shortfall, and the |egislature hoped

for a positive financial future. She wondered if each
district had individual contracts with NEA M. Kitter

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



responded that the NEA health trust offered a conbination
of eight different health plans, tw different dental
pl ans, and the option to purchase orthodontia. She
furthered that, under a matrix formula, there were thirty
different available plan designs. She explained that the
econony, standard, and premum plans were the three
different plans that were offered under the State of Al aska
"My Care, Alaska Care" formula.

3:19: 21 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the costs to the thirty
plans had increased over the vyears. She renmarked that
various school districts had testified about substanti al
increases since 2000. M. Kitter replied that nedical
inflation was driving the cost of health care upward, but
she remarked that the NEA Health Trust maintained a |ess
than 10 percent increase on an annual basis.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough inquired if the benefits had
i ncreased on the negotiated contracts. M. Kitter responded
that the benefit increases to NEA nmenbers were federally
mandated. She renmarked that the plans were not under
grandfather status. She furthered that the negotiations
with the community and the providers significantly
decreased the annual increases.

Senator Bi shop wondered if the admn fee was 3 percent. M.
Kitter responded in the affirmative. She furthered that the
3 percent went toward non-claim activity, and specifically
poi nted out that 97 percent went to direct health, nedical,
prescription, dental, and vision clains.

Senat or Dunleavy wondered if NEA was prepared to rel ease
its clains data in order to help the legislature nmake a

final, infornmed decision. M. Kitter responded that NEA
woul d be providing the requested data. She clarified that
NEA was against the speed at which the bill was

progressi ng, because they were not able to nmake a
legitimate response on the validity of the outcome of the
bill.

3:24:30 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy restated his question, and wondered if the
NEA woul d release clains data, in order to determ ne what
is best for Alaska. Ms. Kitter replied that she would take

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



that question to the trustees, who were neeting the
fol |l ow ng day.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered when he would be able to get a
response. M. Kitter responded that she would supply a
response by Friday evening.

Vice-Chair Fairclough surmsed that NEA would be nmanaged
under the Affordable Care Act, and wondered if NEA had
filed an exenption petition on the basis of a non-profit
organi zation. Ms. Kitter replied that NEA did not have the
option of being exenpt fromthe Affordable Care Act.

Vi ce- Chai r Faircl ough handed the gavel to Co-Chair Meyer

Senator Dunleavy remarked that many testifiers spoke in
support of the legislation, and wondered if she had nore
information to those testifiers that they my not
understand about the legislation. M. Kitter replied that
she understands the frustration regarding what sonme
consider the high cost of health insurance. She stressed
that individuals had the option to pay for |ower cost
heal th i nsurance, and opted not to.

Senator Dunl eavy surm sed that sone of the individuals had
opted to not purchase |ower cost health insurance, thus the
hi gh cost of insurance was an optional issue that could be
dealt wth by the school districts. Ms. Kitter replied that
there were many different plan designs available, and the
school districts had the option to shop for different plan
designs to provide for their enpl oyees.

3:28:53 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fai r cl ough wonder ed i f NEA recei ved
contributions from school districts or plan participants on
district enployees that were not covered by the trust. M.
Kitter responded that the NEA trust did not directly
receive waiver funds for the school district enployees who
had waived off the plan. She believed there were severa
school districts that agreed to provide funding for the
i ndi vidual s who had waived; and that funding was then used
to offset the premuns that were paid for the individuals
who had enrolled in the plan.

Vice-Chair Fairclough surmsed that all premuns go to the
trust, and all funds received were used to benefit the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



enpl oyees inside of the trust receiving benefits. M.
Kitter agreed.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough surm sed that the NEA did not receive
wai ver funds. Ms. Kitter agreed, and furthered that the NEA
did not receive a direct paynent of waiver funds. She
shared that the Anchorage School District allocates waiver
funds to a separate pool, and then utilize the pool to
of fset the costs of the enrolled individuals.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered where that noney was
directed. She understood that the noney offset prem uns,
and felt that the NEA should have that noney. M. Kitter
responded that the Anchorage School District and NEA agreed
that the district would fund for all eligible enployees.
The noney for enployees who chose not to take coverage was
set aside into a separate waiver pool in the district. On a
nmonthly basis, the school district utilizes a portion of
the funds to pay the premuns that would normally be held
by the enployees. Anchorage School D strict enployees did
not have a deduction from their payroll check for the
sumrer nonths through Decenber. She furthered that the
noney that was previously accounted for in waiver funds,
became the premum that enployees portion of enrolled
i ndi vi dual s.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough surmsed that the Anchorage School
District was still collecting noney fromthe state, and the
district set that noney aside to pay the premums to NEA
Ms. Kitter replied that Vice-Chair Fairclough's summation
reflected Ms. Katter's inpression.

3:33:13 PM

DOUG SWANSON, BUSI NESS MANAGER, ALASKAN PUBLIC EMPLOYEES
ASSCCI ATION, testified against SB 90. He stated that for
the current benefit vyear, July 2012— June 2013, the
Anchorage School District has paid $1,235 per enployee per
month to the Trust to provide health coverage. Enployees
who sel ected coverage under the Trust’'s full famly health
plan option, which is simlar to the State's Select
Benefits Standard Plan and includes dental and vision
coverage, School District enployees pay $125 per enployee
per nmonth. In conparison, this year the State of Al aska
paid $1,330 per enployee per nonth for its enployees. In
order to obtain famly nedical, dental, and vision coverage
simlar to the PE7l plans, enployees paid $214 per nonth,.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



If the Public Enployees Local 71 bargaining unit of
Anchorage School District were covered under the State of
Al aska plan this benefit year at the State of Al aska rates,
the School District would have paid an additional $400, 000,
and each enployee who needed the full famly plan would
have paid an additional $1,068 for the year. Wile cost is
a meaningful consideration, we believe that custoner
service is inportant, as well. W are able to craft our
health plan to address the issues which are neaningful to
our enpl oyees. For exanple, we were anong the Al aska health
plans to offer health fairs to our covered nenbers, and
provide them with free and low cost inoculations and
preventive blood testing. W maintain a Trust office in
Anchor age, and Anchorage School District enployees are able
to nmeet wth our Trust staff in person to discuss
enroll ment or benefit issues. This has proven inval uabl e,
especially when working with enployees and famlies for
whom English is a second |anguage. It also relieves their

enpl oyer.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if M. Swanson would support the
legislation, if the data reflected a cost savings. M.
Swanson replied that he woul d support cost savings.

SB 90 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

3:43: 16 PM
AT EASE

3:44: 56 PM
RECONVENED

#hb71
CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 71(FIN)

"An  Act requiring the Departnent of Commer ce,
Communi ty, and Econom c Devel opnent to file an annua
report to the legislature regarding statewi de and
regi onal econonic devel opment projects and regional
devel opnment organi zations; extending the term nation
date of the Alaska regional econom ¢ assi stance
program and providing for an effective date."

3:45: 07 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES, explained HB 71. The bill
woul d extend the program for an additional three years. She
shared that there were 12 ardors in Alaska with the purpose
of providing local input and she stressed that the program
was fornmed 25 years earlier. She comunicated that the
program had been a lifeline for sone of the state's
villages. She discussed the annual cost per ARDOR  She
noted there were different acconplishnents across the
state. She stated that an audit had not been conducted
during the programis lifetime. She pointed to an ARDORS
Annual Report (copy on file). She explained that Anchorage
had worked with their ARDOR to reach out on an
international Ilevel. She shared that the Anchorage ARDOR
had recently hosted a supplier conference related to the
Kodi ak based aerospace program She stressed that the
ARDORS had a positive inpact on Alaska's economc
devel opnent .

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if the public testinony
coul d be heard, before an anendment was addressed.

JASON HOKE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, COPPER VALLEY DEVELOPMENT
ASSCCI ATI ON, GLENNALLEN (via teleconference), testified in
support of HB 71. He stated that he had devel oped a food
distribution network thanks to the ARDOR program He
remar ked that he had reached out to an ARDOR in None to
share sone agriculture feasibility issues. He renmarked that
t he ARDORs had been instrunental in regional energy plans.

3:51: 43 PM

BARBARA JOHNSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, NORTH STAR BOROUGH
MAYOR S OFFI CE, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of HB 71.

ANDY VARNER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SOUTHWEST ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL
CONFERENCE, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of HB 71.

MELODY NI BECK, BRISTOL BAY NATIVE ASSOCI ATI ON, DI LLI NGHAM
(via tel econference), spoke in support of HB 71.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

4:00: 09 PM
AT EASE

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



4:00:52 PM
RECONVENED

Senator O son explained that there was a CS to extend the
hair crab and scallop limted entry program for the next
five years.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT the Senate conmmttee
substitute for CS HB 71(FIN, Wrk Draft 28-LS0288\P
(Martin, 4/11/13).

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion.

DAVI D SCOTIT, STAFF, SENATOR DONNY OLSON, explained that the
change added the extension of the scallop and hair crab
limted entry programfor five years.

Co-Chair Meyer felt like five years may be too | ong.

4:04:45 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if five years was consi stent
with a previous bill. Senator O son shared that the |ast
extensi on was nmade five years prior

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the sponsor requested three
years, because there was a requested audit. Vice-Chair
Fai rcl ough explained that the programs are two different
prograns. She wondered if there was a title change in
order.

Co-Chair Meyer WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representati ve Hughes stated that she had not reviewed the
CS, and hoped that she could have discussions wth Senator
a son.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if a conceptual anendnent
could be offered to insert a severability clause.

M. Scott explained that Section 1 was inserted at the
advi ce of Legislative Legal.

Vice-Chair Fairclough felt that the severability clause
could be used to separate the program M. Scott agreed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 04/ 11/ 13 1:47 P. M



4:09: 23 PM
AT EASE

4:11: 06 PM
RECONVENED

BEN BROWN, COW SSI ONER, COMVERCI AL FI SHERI ES ENTRY
COMM SSI ON, explained that there was not a single subject
problem with the legislation, even absent the reporting
requi rement, based on the precedent of five years prior. He
felt that the addition of the reporting requirenment, nade
the two progranms very simlar.

Vice-Chair Fairclough shared that there were nany issue
that were inportant for Alaskans, and wondered if the
| anguage was simlar to the House version. M. Brown agreed
to provide that infornmation.

Vice-Chair Fairclough remarked that the House would have
conversations regarding this issue.

Senat or O son thanked the sponsor for the |egislation

MOVED to REPORT SCS CS HB 71(FIN) out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e.

SCS CS HB 71(FIN) was REPORTED out of committee with a "do
pass” recomendation and with two new zero fiscal notes
from Departnment of Fish and Gane, and a previously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN2 (CED).

#
ADJ OURNIVENT
4:15:53 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:15 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 04/ 11/13 1:47 P. M



